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Covering Letter

Dear Members,

Invitation to attend 11th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday,

24t November 2021 through Video Conferencing

In view of the COVID - 19 Pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), has, vide its General
Circular No. 14/2020, dated 8t April, 2020 and further clarification provided vide General Circular
No. 17/2020, dated 13t April, 2020 and General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5% May, 2020
(collectively “MCA Circulars”) permitted Companies to conduct Annual General Meeting (AGM)
through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (0AVM) facility, subject to compliance

of various conditions mentioned therein.

In compliance with the MCA Circulars and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 11th AGM of
the Company is being convened and conducted through VC facility via Microsoft Teams (Web
Application).

In order to enable ease of participation of the Members, we are providing following details regarding

the meeting for your reference:

Sr. Particulars Details
No.
1. | Link to Join https://teams.microsoft.com/dl/launcher/launcher.h

tml?7url=%2F_%23%2F1%2Fmeetup-
join%2F19%3Ameeting YjJhMjMOZGEtOTI4Zi0OONW
ZhLTgyOWQINWIWZTgwODFmYTVh%40thread.v2%
2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a
%2522¢1ed0984-ca45-42c1-becf-
d0calc27f91b%2522%252c¢%252201d%2522%253a
%25223cb1b13b-51a7-4d95-b1a8-
874c76f970e7%2522%257d%26anon%3Dtrue&typ
e=meetup-join&deeplinkld=a37c2d3c-ff58-4b7f-
a4a0-
db8fb15eac03&directDl=true&msLaunch=true&enab

leMobilePage=true&suppressPrompt=true




2. | Username and Password

3. | Helpline Number for VC Participation

4. | Company’s Contact Details Designated email address of the Company is
accounts@jnkindia.com

Phone No. with name of Designated person

Mr. Sandeep Bapat

Manager

9820670275

The notice convening the 11th AGM along with all its Annexure is attached herewith. Kindly make it

convenient to attend this meeting to transact the following Matters:

By order of the Board
For JNK India Private Limited

Arvind Kamath

Director

DIN: 00656181

2004 Fiona, Hiranandani Estate
Ghodbunder Road, Thane (W) 400607

Date: 16.11.2021

Place: Thane
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 11t Annual General Meeting of the Members of JNK INDIA PRIVATE
LIMITED will be held on Wednesday 24th November, 2021 at the Registered Office of the Company
at 11.30am (IST), 3.00pm to transact following business as:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, approve and adopt Audited Financial Statement (Standalone and consolidated)

for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as

an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements Standalone and consolidated of the
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, comprising of Balance Sheet as at 31
March, 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the financial year
ended on that date, along with the Notes to Financial Statements and Accounting Policies thereto
and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors of the Company, be and are hereby received,

considered and adopted.”

2. To consider declaration of Dividend on equity shares.
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as

an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT a final dividend of Rs.10 Per equity share on paid up equity share capital of
the company aggregating to Rs. 60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Lakhs only) as reccmmended by the
Board be and is hereby declared to the equity shareholders of the company whose name is
appearing in the register of Members of the company as on the date of the annual general meeting

of the members of the company..”



SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without meodification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 61(1)(a) and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment
thereof) and rules framed thereunder and pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
the consent of the shareholders of the company be and is hereby accorded to increase the
Authorized Share Capital of the Company from existing Rs. 200,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crores
Only) divided into 20,00,000 (Twenty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each to Rs.
10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores) divided into 100,00,000 (One Crore ) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may in their absolute discretion deem
necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this
regard and to sign and execute all necessary documents, applications, returns and writings as may
be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient.”

4. Alteration of Clause V (a) of Memorandum of Association of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 and all other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof) and
rules framed thereunder, the consent of the shareholders of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for alteration of Memorandum of Association of the Company by replacing the existing
Clause V (a) by the following Clause:

V (a) The Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores) divided
into 100,00,000 (One Crore ) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to do all such acts, deeds and things as are necessary for the purpose of giving effect to this
resolution.”

5. Issue of Bonus shares

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with Section 63 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), the relevant provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
and the recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company, and such permissions,
sanctions and approvals as may be required in this regard, consent of the Members be and is
hereby accorded to the Board for issue of 90,00,000 (Ninety Lakhs) Equity Shares of the face
value Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each, as Bonus Shares, by capitalizing the Surplus in Profit and
Loss Account to the extent of Rs. 9,00,00,000/- (Rupees Nine Crores Only), credited as fully paid-



up shares to the holders of the existing equity shares of the Company, whose names appear in the
Register of Members as on the date of extra-ordinary general meeting, in the proportion of 15:1
i.e. 15 (Fifteen) equity share for every 1 (One) existing equity share held by the Members.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Bonus Shares so allotted shall rank pari passu in all respects
with the fully paid-up equity shares of the Company as existing this date and shall always be
subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all other steps as
may be necessary to give effect to the aforesaid resolution and determine all other terms and
conditions of the issue of bonus shares as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem fit.”

By order of the Board
For JNK India Private Limited

Director

DIN: 00656181

2004 Fiona, Hiranandani Estate
Ghodbunder Road, Thane (W) 400607

Date:16-11-2021

Place: Thane
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NOTES:

1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the
Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto and forms

part of notice.

2. The Company has enabled the members to participate at the AGM through Video Conferencing
(VC) facility. The facility of conducting meeting through VC allows through Microsoft Teams web

application for the ease of participation of members.

3. The facility for joining the meeting will be kept open at least 15 minutes before i.e.]l.|5am (the
time scheduled to start the meeting) and will not be closed till the expiry of 15 minutes after

such scheduled time. Hence, members are requested to join the meeting at a scheduled time.

4. Attendance of members through VC will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum

under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. The Members / Participants are allowed to pose questions concurrently during the meeting or
sufficient time will be given to submit questions in advance on the above-mentioned e-mail

address of the Company.

6. At the meeting, the Chairman may decide to conduct a vote by Show of hands, unless a demand

for poll is made by any member.

7. During the meeting, where a poll on any item is required, the Members may cast their vote on
the resolutions only by sending emails through their email addresses which are registered
with the Company. The said emails shall only be sent to the designated email address as

mentioned above. Poll Paper in Form MGT-12 is attached herewith as “Annexure A.”

8. As per the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf. Since the 11th AGM is being held through
VC as per the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be made available

for the 11t AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

9. Pursuant to Section 112 and 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of bodies

corporate / corporate members are requested to send a certified true copy of Board resolution



P

W

or Power of Attorney authorizing their representative for the purpose of participation and vote

on their behalf in meeting held through VC.

10. Inline with the MCA Circulars, the notice of the 11th AGM along with the Annual Report 2020-
21 are being sent only by electronic mode to Members on their e-mail addresses registered with

the Company. Members may please note that this Notice and Annual Report 2020-21 will also
be available on the Company’s website at https://www.jnkindia.com

11. Asthe 11th AGM is being held through VC, the route map is not annexed to this Notice.

By order of the Board
For JNK India Private Limited

)\
Wl

Arvind Kamath

Director

DIN: 00656181

2004 Fiona, Hiranandani Estate
Ghodbunder Road, Thane (W) 400607
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Annexure to Notice Dated 16t November, 2021

Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013, to the items of special business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting to be
held on 24th November, 2021 at 11.30 am IST

Item Nos. 3 and 4:

The present authorised capital of the Company is Rs. 200,00,000/- divided into 20,00,000 equity
shares of Rs.10/- each. Out of this 600,000 equity shares are already issued by the Company. With
the proposed bonus issue of new equity shares as recommended by the Board of Directors at their
meeting held on 25% October 2021, the exiting authorised Share Capital will not be sufficient.
Hence to enable the bonus issue in the ratio of 15:1 aggregating to 90,00,000 (Ninety Lakhs)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each amounting to Rs. Rs.900,00,000/- (Rupees Nine
Crores Only), it is proposed to increase the authorised share capital of the Company to Rs.
10,00,00,000/- divided into 100,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each by further creation of
80,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

As per the provisions of Section 61(1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of the members of
the Company is necessary for the increase in the Authorised Share Capital.

The increase in Authorised Share Capital necessitates amendment to the Capital Clause in the
Memorandum of Association which is also subject to the approval of members of the Company in
terms of Section 13 of the Act.

Accordingly, your Board recommends passing of the resolution as contained in Item Nos. 3 and 4
as Ordinary Resolutions.

None of the Directors, key managerial personnel and their relatives is interested in the passing
of the resolution.

Item No. 5:

The Company has made good amount of profit in past few years and it is in a growth mode.
Considering the profit earn in past few years it was recommended by the board members in their
meeting held on 25t October, 2021 to issue bonus shares to its existing shareholders as a token
of appreciation and this Bonus share shall be considered as fully paid up shares.

The present paid up capital of the company is only Rs. 60,00,000/-.Looking at the future funds
requirements of the company, the board of directors of the company have formed a view that the
company's capital base should be enhanced so that its ability to raise further funds goes up. In
the present circumstances the board of directors have decided to capitalize part of the existing
surplus in profit and loss account for the proposed bonus issue. Accordingly board has taken a
decision at their meeting held on 25% October, 2021, to increase the paid up capital of the
company by recommending bonus issue to the persons who are holders of equity shares of the
company as on date of Annual General Meeting in the ratio of 15:1 (i.e. 15 equity shares of face
value Rs. 10/- each for every one fully paid equity share of Rs. 10/- each held in the company).



The Bonus issue shall be subject to the provisions of AOA and shall rank pari passu with existing
equity shares in all respect.

As per Section 63 of The Companies Act, 2013, issue of bonus shares requires the approval of
members in general meeting. Accordingly your Board recommends passing of Ordinary
resolution for issue of Bonus shares.

None of the Directors, key managerial personnel and their relatives is interested in the passing

of the resolution except to the extent of shares which will be allotted to them as shareholders of
the company..

For JNK India Private Limited

Director

(DIN:00656181)
2004 Fiona, Hiranandani Estate
Off GB Road, Thane (W) 400607

Date: 16-11-2021
Place: Thane
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DIRE -

T
The Members of,
JNE India Private Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 11th Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31%
March, 2021 and on the state of affairs of the Company,

1. FINANCIAL FERFORMANCE:
The Company's Financial Performance for the financial year ended on 31= March, 2021 under
review along with previous year's figures are given hereunder:

Financial Year Financial Year
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
(Rs) (Rs)
Total Income 122,10,49 444 103,17.99,143
Profit/ (Loss) before tax I ES AT 11,7422 104
Tax Expenses 6.33.31,651 3,0232.766
Profit/ [Loss) after tax 16,45.02,326 87189338

2. DIVIDEND

During the year under review, the Company declared and paid Dividend [Rs. 10 per share) of Rs,
&0,00,000/- out of the free reserves of the company at the Board Meeting held on 7th Seprember
20200

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of Rs.10/- per share, apgregating to
Rs.60,00,000/-(Rupees Sixty Lakhs only) for the current Anancial vear, The dividend if approved
and declared in the forthcoming Annual General meeting would result a Dividend outflow of
R=.60,00,000-

3. DERQSITS

During the financial year under consideration, your Company has not accepled any public
deposits within the meaning of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there
under,

(y
(57
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4. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

Pursuant to Rule 8 [5) (viii] of Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has an adequate
internal financial control system commensurate with the size of its business operations and with
reference to its Financial Statements

5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors is duly constituted In accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Board at present consists of Three {3] Directors.

1. Mr Arvind Kamath
Z. Mr.Bang Hee Kim
3. Mr. Goutam K Rampelli

Mrs. Prajwal Kamath (00656070) resigned from the direciorship of the Company with effect from
11th February, 2021. The Board appreciates the waluable service rendered by her during her
aszociation with the Company.

Detalls of Board Meetings Held:

Mumber of Board Meetings Held: 5

Sr. | Date of Board Name of Director and Attendance details
Mo | Meeting
Mr. Arvind Mr, Bang Hee Mr. Goutam Mrs. Prajwal
Kamath Kim Rampelli Kamath
1. | 20.07.2020 Present Present Present Absant
2. | 07.09.2020 " Present Present Present Absent
3. | 12102020 Present Present Present Absent
4. | 27.01.202] Present Present Present Ahsent
5. | 18.03.2021 Present Abhsent Present NA
CSR COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the financial year 2020-21, the members of the Corporate Social Responsibility {(CSR)
Committee duly met 2 [Two] time i.e. on 7th September, 2020 and 18th March 2021.

6. DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 (3] (c] read with Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors
gtate that:

. In the preparation of the financial Statements, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

h. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates thatare reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the

(]
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state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2021 and of its Profit and loss for the year ended on
that date;

¢. The directors had taken proper and sufficlent care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irrepularities;

d. The directors had prepared the financial Statements on a ‘going concern’ basis; and

e, The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively,

7. APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. CVK & Assoclates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbal (Firm Registration Number: 101745W)
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years at the AGM held on 14t
August, 2019, to hold office from the conclusion of the said AGM until the conclusion of the AGM of
the Company to be held for financial year ending 3 1st March, 2024.

8. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 20013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

9. COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and eperating effectively.

10. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

A detailed exercise is being carried out to identify, evaluate, manage and monitor both business and
non-business risk. The Board periodically reviews the risks and suggests steps to be taken to control
and mitigate the same throwgha properly defined framework,

11. DETAILS OF LOANS AVAILED FROM DIRECTORS OR THEIR RELATIVES
The Company has not availed any loans from Its Directors or from their relatives during the financial

year. Hence, the details required under Clause (viif) of Rule 2 of Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014, are not given.
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A. Conservation of Energy: The Company constantly strives (o save power consumption at the
office premises through use of power-saving electric equipments.

B. Technology Absorption; The Company has not taken any technical know-how from anyone
and hence, there is no question of technology absorption as such necessary infermation has not

heen given,
C. Forelgn Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
Details of earnings in foreign exchange;
Particulars FY 20Z20-21 FY 2019-Z0
. (Rs) (Rs)
Export of goods calculated on 11,63,53526 6,29,75,382
FOB basis
Professional and Consultancy i 796,056
fees -
Other Income 59,02,83,095 25,71,20,266
Total Earning in foreign 7 760,306,621 32.08,91,704
Exchange
Details of expenditure in foreign exchange:
Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
(Rs) (Rs)
Import of goods calculated on
CIF basis
(i) Raw Material 1,18,71.053 186,808,152
(ii} Component and spare - 50,20,425
parts
Professional and Consultancy 2,69,48,008 1,28,00,000
faes
Other expenditure 3,23,80,894 53,67,059,665
Total Earning in foreign 7,11,99,955 9,32,18,242
Exchange
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13. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013,

The Company has duly set up an Internal Complaints Committes {ICC) in line with the
requirements of The Sexwal Harassment of Women at the Workplace [Prevention Prohibition &
Redressal] Act, 2013, to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment

The fellowing is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during
the year 2020-21.

Mo of complaints received: Nil
Mo of complaints disposed off: Nil

14. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY
Following are the Subsidiaries /Associates of the Company.

A. JNK India Private FZE

This Company is mainly engaged into erection works of CCR, NHT, MHC and CDU [A. B & C)
Heaters for Dangote Ol Refinery and petrochemicals project.

The detsils of financial performance of Subsidiaries are furnished in Annexure-A In
prescribed Form AQC-1.

15. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES.

Details of each of the related party transaction entered into by the company during the year, as
defined under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are annexed herewith in Form ADC-2 as
"Annexure B

16. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The details of employee(s) who are In recelpt of remuneration exceeding the limits specified
under Rule 5 (2] of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules,
2014 are attached herewith as “Annexure-C *,

16. ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) (a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on 3151
March, 2021 is available on the Company's website on wwwink Indiacom at
https:/finkindia.com/(Link).
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17. DETAILS OF COMPANY'S CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provisions of the Corporate Soclal Responsibility as contained under the Companles Act, 2013
are applicable on the Company.

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility [CSR) Policy of the Company and the
initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure-
D of this report In the format prescribed in the Companies [Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014,

18. OTHER DMSCLOSURES:

wii,

Wik,

K.

The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity
shares or bonus shares, The Company has not bought back any of its shares. [Section 43(a) (il],
54, 63 & 68 respectively]

The Company has not issued & allotted equity shares on rights basis during the financial vear
2020-21. [Section 62]

It is not proposed to transfer any amount to reserves. [Section 134 (3] (1]

Mo material changes and commitments which could affect the Company's financial position have
oecurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and date of this report. [Section

134 (3) 1))

The provisions regarding receipt of remuneration or commisgion from holding or subsidiary of
the Company are not applicable for the year under review and hence, the disclosure under
Section 197 (14) 15 not required.

i. There was no change in the nature of business during the financial year under review, [Sub-rule 5

(i) of Rule B of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014].

The Company was not required to appoint any Key Managerial Personnel during the yvear under
review. [Sub-rule 5 [iii] of Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

During the financial year under review, no company has become subsidiary of your Company.
[Sub Rule 5[iv] of Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 201 4].

Mo significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and Company's operations in future. [Sub-rule 5 (vii) of Rule 8 of
Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014]

The provisions pertaining to the appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to the
Company, [Section 149]

The provisions relating to constitution of Momination and Remuneration Committee and
formulation of Policy relating to Directors’ appointment and remuneration, gualifications,
positive attributes, independenge of Djrector other related matters are not applicable to the
Company. [Section 178] f

i
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xll. There was no qualification, reservation or adverse remark made by the Statutory Auditors in
their report,

#iil. The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report are not applicable to the
Company. [Section 204 and Section 134 (3] (f) (ii)]

xiv. The provisions relating to constitution of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are
applicable to the Company. [Section 135]

wd. The provisions with respect to maintenance of cost records and appointment of Cost Auditor as
prescribed under Section 148 of Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company.

wvi. The provisions relating to constitution of Audit Committes are not applicable to the
Company. [Section 177 [8]]

wwii. The provisions relating to estabiishment of Vigil Mechanism are not applicable to the Company.
[Section 177 [9)]

wvili, The Statutory Auditors of the company have not reported any instances of fraud or irregularities
in the management of the Company during financlal year under review,
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation to the wholehearted help and co-operation
the Company has received from the business associates, partners, vendors, clients, government
authorities, and bankers of the Company.

The relations between the management and the staff were cordial during the year under review. The

Company also wishes to put on record the appreciation of the work done by the staff, Your Directors
appreciate and value the trust imposed upon them by the members of the Company.

For |NK India Private Limited
(o

< g é{l 'I.."/
e
Arvind Kamath Goutam Rampelli

Director [DIN: DD&56181]) Director (DIN: 072 B272H)
2004 Fiona Hiranandani Estate 1204 Yucca Bldg, Nahar Amrit
Ghodbunder Road, Thane [W) Shakti Near Powal, Andheri (E)
400607 Mumbal 400072

Place: Thane

Date: 25.10.2021
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Forin ACC-1

{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries fassociate
companies/jomt ventures As on 31st March, 2021
Part "A": Subsidiaries
[Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amaounts in Rs.)

1. No. Particulars Subsidiary
1)

1. Name of the subsidiary JNE INDIA PVT FZIE

r Reporting perlod for the subsidiary concerned, if different | 1% April 2020 to 31+
from the holding company’s reporting period March 2021

3 Repaorting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of Nigerian Naira.
the relevant Financial wear in the case of foreign | 1 Naira=0.1802 INR
subsidiaries

4 Share capital MIL

5. Reserves & surplus 372606

. Total assets B52, 2[?,619

7 Total Liahilities 8,51,83,353

8 Investments MIL

g, Turnover 19,17 56,007

1 Profit before taxation 39064

11 Translation Loss 1795

12, Provision for taxation NIL

13. Profit after taxation 39,064 |

14, Proposed Dividend NIL |

15, 5 of shareholding 100

Notes:

1. Names of the subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NIL

2. Names of the subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL

|
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Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companles Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures: Not Applicable

Notes

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. NA
4. Names ol associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the yearNA

For INK India Private Limited

Arvind Kamath

Director (DIN: 00656181)
2004 Fiona Hiranandani Estate
Ghodbunder Road, Thane [W)
400607

Place: Thane
Drate: 25.10.2021

Goutam Rampelli

Director (DIN: 07262728)
1204 Yucca Bldg, Nahar Amrit
Shakti Near Powal, Andheri (E}
Mumbal 400 072
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Form No. AQC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Detalls of contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NI

2 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length
basis:
Name (s) of the | Mature of Duration af Salient terms of the Date of Amount
related party & | contracts/ar the contracts or arrangements | approval by | paid as
nature of rangements | contracts/ar| ortransactions including | the Board, if | advances,
relationship: | firansaction | rangements the value, if any: any: ifany:
5 Stransaction
=]
Mr. Arvind Reimburseme| DuringFY | The value of transaction 20072020 NIL
Kamath nt of 2020-21 | enterinto during the year is
(Director) BXPENses R=20,058/-
Mr. B. H. Kim Legaland | FY2020-21 | The Value of the transaction | 07.09.2020 NIL
{Director) Professional entered into by the company
Fees during the year is Rs,
- 1.48,00,000/-
R Goutam Reimburseme| DuringFY | The value of transaction 2007.2020 MIL
[Director) nt of 2020-21 enter into during the year
ERpEnses Rs37.429/-
Priya Bharuka Professional | During FY | The value of transaction 20072020 MIL
{Relative of Key Fees 2020-21 | enter into Rs.40,00,000/-
person]
~ (W
g f_‘ /
o
) R.Lr
It
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INK Heaters Co. 2ale of F¥ 2020-21 | The Value of the transaction MA NIL
litd Korea Service entered into by the company
[(Body corporale during the year s Rs,
whose Board of 44, 77,67 213 /-
Directors is
accustomed to
act)
INK Heaters Co. sale of Goods | FY 2020-21 | The Value of the transaction MA Ml
Ltd Korea entered into by the company
(Body corporate during the year is Rs.
whose Board of 4,1856322 -
Directors is
accustamed to
act)
JNK Heaters Co, Advances | FY 2020-21 | The Value of the transaction NA Mil
Ltd Korea received in entered into by the company
(Body corporate course of during the year is Rs.
whose Board of business B.38,08.408/-
Directors is
accustomed to
act)
Mascot Capital &| Legaland | FY 2020-21 | The Value of the transaction | 20072020 il
Marketing Pvt Ltd | professional entered into by the company
(Halding Fees during the year is Rs.
Company) 3424,534/-
Mascor Dynamics, Sale of duty | FY 2020-21 | The Value of the transaction 20.07.2020 Mil
P Ltd credit serips entered into by the company
[Entity with |oint during the year is Rs,
or Commaon 8947 H2T/-
Contral)
Mascot Dynamics| Reimburseme| FY 2020-21 | The Value of the transaction NA Mil
Pt Ltd ntof entered into by the company
{Entity with Joint EXPENses during the vear is Rs, 7080,/
or Commion
Congred]
Porvair Filtration| Sale of Goods | FY 2020-21 | The Value of the transaction MA Ml
India Pvt. Ltd entered into by the company
(Entity with Joint during the year Is
or Common Rs. 40,000/
Control]
|MK Heaters Ci, Sale of FY 2020-21 | The Value of the transaction MA Hil
Lid Korea Service entered inbo by the company
(PO during the yearis
Rs.25,61.49.721/-

INK Heaters Co.| Advances | FYZ2020-21 | The Value of the transaction MA il
Ltd [POI) Recd in entered into by the company

corse of during the vear is

Business Re.14.97 41,735« - l

Fage | 11
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| |NK [ndia Pvt. FZE Receiptof | FY 2020-21 | The Value of the transaction MA Wil
(Wholly  owned Services entered into by the company
Subsidiary) during the vear is
Rs.3,00,10,095/-
|MK India Pvt. FZE |  Advances | During FY The Value of the transaction NA il
(Wholly  owned| givenin | 2020-21 entered into hy the company
Subsidiary) course of during the year Is
business Rs.3.3548,430/-
INK India Pvt, FZE | Reimburseme| During FY | The Value of the transaction | 20.07.2020 Nil
{Wholly  owned nt of 2020-21 enterad into by the company
Subsidiary) EXPENSES during the year is
Rs43,04541/-
By arder of the Board,
For WK India Private Limited Iﬂv/
W 2 o] ] UI//

Arvind Kamath

Director (DIN: 00656181)
2004 Fions Hiranandani Estate
Ghodbunder Road, Thane (W)

400607

Place: Thane

Date: 25.10.2021

= ————

routam Rampelli

Director [DIMN: 0726272 8)
1204 Yucca Bldg, Nahar Amrit
Shakti Near Powal, Andheri (E)
Mumbai 400 072
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Annexure "C*

Statement pursuant to Rule 5 (2) & (3) of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Name Age | Deslgna Giross Qualification| Total | Date of Last
(¥r) | Hom Remuneration EX]. commencemen | cmployment
[Rs.) (Vear) ' tof held
Employment Designation
period for
B _ which post held
Mr, Arvind| 52 | DMrecter | Rs. 8.20,00,000,/- BE 24 14/06,/2010 Sulzer pumps
Kamath Per Annum VBArs India Ltd
1993-2001
Marketing Sales |
Manager
Customer
Relatinn.
M., 66 | Director | R=5,36,00000/- [MTECH-In  [38 | 01/07/2015 L&T
Goutam Par Annum chemical years General Manager
Rampelli l engineering
NOTES:

1} Gross remuneration comprises salary, allowances and Incentives and does not indude Company's
PF Contribution,

2] The nature of employment is contractual or otherwise. - Parmanent

3) Mr. Arvind Kamath does not hold any share in his own name In the paid up share capital of the
caompany. However, M/s. Mascot Capital & Marketing Put, Ltd, which is Company's Holding Company,
is owned by Mr. Arvind Kamath & Mr. Girish Kamath together.

By order of the Board,

For [NK India Private Limited

Arvind Kamath

Director (DIN: 00656181)
2004 Fiona Hiranandani Estate
Ghodbunder Road, Thane [W)

L L e T e T T

Goutam Eampelli

OG0T
Place: Thane
Date: 25.10.2021

Mumbai 400 072

Director (DIN; D7262728)
1204 Yucca Bldg, Nahar Amrit
Shakti Near Powal, Andheri (E)
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“ANNEXURE-D"
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

1. Eriefputline on C5R policy of the Company

The Company is committed to enrich the quality of life in different segments of the society, The Company alms toe
affect positively the economic and social conditivns of communities in which the Company operates. It is the
continuing cemmitment of the Company to behave ethically and contribute to the econemic development of the
society at large and building capacity for sustainable development. The details of CSR Policy of the Company are
available at the Company's website

2. Composition of CSE Committes:

Mature  of | CSR_ Commitiee  held | of CSR
Directorship | during the year Committee gttended
during the year
3 Arvind Kamath Chairman ' 2 2
2. Goutam Rampelll | Member 2 Tz
3. Bang Hee Kim | Member 0 ' 0

hitps:/finkindia.com/wp-content/uploads/2021 /03 /INK-CSR-Policy pdf

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule [3) of rule
8 of the Companies [Corporate Social responsibility Pelicy) Rules, 2014, If applicable (attach the
report].: NA

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
{(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any.

51 No, F‘i:nantial Year | Amount avallable for set-off | Amount required to be set- ]
from preceding financial years| off for the financial vear, if
(in Rs) any [in Bs)
1 2019-20 1,69, 260 1,649,260
2 2018-19 NA NA
3 2017-18 MNA MA
Total 1,69,260 1,69,260

%
; [y®
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6. Average Net Profit of the Company as per section 135(5):

Rs. 7,99,55374/- (Rupees Seven crores Ninety Nine Lakhs Fifty Five Thousand Three Hundred and Seventy Four
Oily]

7. (&) Two Percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5)
Rs. 15,959,107 /- [Rupees Fifteen Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand One Hundresd Seven Only)

(b} Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, Ks. NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Rs. 1,69,260,/-
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7h-7c).: Rs.14,29,847 /-

B  a) Details

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

TOER- et Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund
Spent for the
Unspent CSR Account as per|  specified under Schedule V1 as per
g ction 135(6 d provi ion 135(5
Year. (in Rs.) section 135(6). second proviso Lo section (5).
Amount. Amount, Date of Wame of the Amount, _Eiate af
transfar, Funi tranzfer,
1605778 NA MA NA MA WA

b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year

(1) (2) (3] |14} (5) ) | (7) | B) | (% (10) (11)
5l. | Name |Item from|Lod Location [Project] Amou [Amou | Amount| Mode of Mode of
No.| of the (the list of| al | ofthe |durati| nt nt | transfer (Implementallmplementati
Projec|activities are| project. | on. |allocat|spent| red to |tion - Direct|on - Through
L in a ed for |in the |Unspent| (Yes/No). |Implementin
Schedule [(Ye the gurren CSR B Agency
VII to the s/N [project t  |Account
Act. |ao). ﬁ:;ﬂ I:I-i:s:ri (in |financ| for the :::‘ :Itegclssilirat
: Rs.). | ial |project ol
Year | as per
(in | Section number.
Rs.). | 135(6)
(in Rs.).
1.
Total 0 0

Y
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(c] Detalls of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year;

1 2 3 14 5 .J & 7 1!
5r. | Nameof | ltem from | Local Location of the Project | Amount | Mode of Mode of
Mo, | the the list of Areas spentfor |[impleme Implementation -
Project | activites (¥es / the ntati on - Through
in Schedule | No) project | Direct Implementing
VIl to the {in Rs.).  [[Yes/No) cy
Act Mame LSk
State District registration
number,
1. | Piantatio | Frotectionof|  No Maharashtra | Hingodi 11,100 Yes NA NA

n and flora &
watering | Fauna,

PlANES | conservation
of naturat
Tesnurces

2 Supply | Frotectionof|  Ng Maharashtra | Hingoll | 277678 Yies HA WA
of Water | flora &
Tanker | Fauna,

conservation

ol natural
rEsources )
3 | Vivekan | Promoeting Yes | Maharashtra Thane | 3,10,000 Yes Ha MA
ad education,
Balkashr | Including
arm special
ed ucation
4 Water | Protection No Maharashtra | Hingoli 75,000 Ves NA NA
Tanker af Aora &
Fauna,
conservatio
n of natural
FESOWrTe
1
y/ 3
il F,'- |:;||
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Purchas | Protect | No | Mah | Ahe | g7150 Yes NA MA
e of ion of aras [ meda
Tree | flora & hira | bad
Gurds | Fauna,
conser
yation
of
| natural
reEsaur
ces
Purchas | Protect | No | Mah | Ahe | z44850 Yes NA N
e of ion of aras | meda
Trea flora & hiktra | bad
Gurds | Fauna,
conscr
vation
af
natural
Fesour
ces
Constru | Promo | No | Mah | Amira | 600,000 Yos NA NA
ctionof | ting aras | wvati
dinmi educati htra
hall for omn,
prashna | includi
chinna ng
Ashram | special
School | educati
on
| Total 16,005,778
[d] Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NA
(e} Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable; NA
() Total amount spent for the Financial Year (Bb+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 16, 05,778/-
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Rs, 6671
5l. No. Particular Amount {in Rs.)
(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the company as 15,99,107/-
per seckion 135(5)
(i} [Total armount spent for the Financial Year 16,05,778/-
(1) |Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-[i)}
6671/
{iv] rplus arising out of the CSR projects or Pl
rogrammes or activities of the previous financial
ars, if any
[v] [Amount avallable for set off in succeeding financial 1,75930/-
years [[1i)-{iv)], :
M W
. 4 :
o g f F_ / Page | 17
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9. [a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

10.

11.

(b] Dretalls of CSR amount spent In the financial year for ongeing projects of the preceding financial

year(s): MIL

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSKE spent in the financial year (asset-wise details). NA

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(z).

(b} Amount of C5R spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset,

[c] Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is

registered, their address et

(d) Provide detatls of the capital asset(s) created or acquired [including complete address and location of

the capital asset).

Specify the reagon(s], if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per

section 135(5). NA

ot o —

Mr. Dipak Bharuka
[Chief Executive Officer)

|‘.-.{
Mr Arvind Kamath
(Chairman C5R Committes).

(Member C3R Committes).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of INK India Private Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of INK India Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31* March,
2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows, the
Statement of Changes in Equity, for the yvear then ended, a summary of the

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the “Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31st March, 2021, its Profit and its cash flow for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the

Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of

Madudund CAITET Eretlopo, TlFic
S 10210 iAo, R R TR B =180 Rl R, oot CHs . F1-0F2-2437 7198

Sobliciy Rooc, Whiunad[£], FhD2I-F1 41 SB50 i b Wios). Ghotmpmisady, Lo - Broe Ty
Mm-S 1. WA ORI | Wi mbo- AN OTE.
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Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethies.

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance Report, and
Shareholder Information, but does not include the standalone financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard,
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, cash flows, changes in equity and-receipts-and-payments
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles penerally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 10

cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The boards of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s

financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
staterments as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
whetl it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements is included in Annexure A. This description forms part of

our auditor’s report.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (*the Order™)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters

specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes

of our audit.
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(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been

kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those

books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow [
Receipts & Payments Account dealt with by this Report are in agreement

with the books of account;

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as
on 31st, March 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of
the directors is disqualified as on 31st, March 2021 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() The matters specified in Section 143(3)(i) regarding Internal Financials
Control over Financials Reporting have been specifically commented in

Annexure C.

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would

impact its financial position.




M/gﬁﬂs soclates
CHARTELEDACCOUNTANTS
ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For CVK & Associates
Chartered Accountarnis
Firm Regn No.: 101743

AN

CA K. P. Chaudhari ;
Pariner

Membership No.: 031661

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th October, 2021
UDIN: 21031661 AAAACGESS3
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report
Auditor’s Responsibilities For Audit Of Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs), we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform andit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
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statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the andit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

For CVK & Associates

Chartered Accountanis

Firm Regn No.: [01745W—. \
Growds . (7. B

cﬁ. Sl B

Partner ity

Membership No: 031661

Place: Mumbai

Date: 25th October, 2021
UDIN: 21031661 AAAACGESS3
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5 Heport Order, 2006 ( The Chrd

{eport under Companies Audito

L]

{Referred to in paragraph 2 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
section of our report of even date to the Members of INK India Private Limited)

We report that:

(i)

a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically
verified by the management at reasonable intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

c) The company does not hold any immovable properties. Thus, paragraph
3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(ii)

a) As explained to us, the inventories of Traded Goods, Stores &
Consumables were physically verified at regular intervals by the
Manapement.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to
ug, the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the
Management were reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
Company and the nature of its business.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to

us, the Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no
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material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of stocks as

compared to book records.

(1i} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’). Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv} In respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security, the provisions of

section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act have been compiled with,

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, so as to
attract the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other provisions of The Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. Thus, paragraph 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) Prima facie the company is required to maintain cost records as per section
145(1) of companies act 2013 & as per information and explanations given
to us and documents produced before us, reasonable records have been
maintained by the company.

(vii)
a) As per the records of the Company, the company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory  dues including Provident Fund,
Employees® State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Goods and

Service Tax and any other Statutory dues with the appropriate
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authorities. As per the records of the Company, there were no arrears of

outstanding statutory dues.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, following

are the details of outstanding dues;

] For the year ended
Particulars J1st March, 2021
) (Rs. in 000°s5)
Ili::;nme lax (A.Y. 2013- 1,995
CST (F.Y. 2011-12) 10,53
CST (F.Y. 2013-14) 2613

(viii) As per the documents and records produced before us, the company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to any financial

institution or bank or Government or debenture holders.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and the explanations given
to us, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and did not have

any term loans outstanding during the year,

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
fraud by the Company or on the company by officers or employees has

been noticed or reported during the course of our audit,

(xi) The company is not a public company and section 197 of the Companies
Act i3 not applicable to it, Thus, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not
applicable,
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(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company. Thus paragraph 3(xii) of the Order
15 not applicable,

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all the
transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable

accounting standards.

(xiv) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the

current year. Thus, Paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons

connected with them,

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For CVK & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101 T43W
(Ao} for ZEEIATEN

CAK.P. Chaudhari [/ )

Partner V&, 2]
Membership No.: 031661 TR

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th October, 2021
UDIN: 21031661 AAAACGESS3
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Annexure C o the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Aet, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JNK
India Private Limited as of 31st March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of directors of company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the imternal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of jts business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Com panies Act, 2013,
Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial

controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
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accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
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reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:
I. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company.

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of

management and directors of the company and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that

could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Finaneial

Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
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because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March,
2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For CVK & Associates
Chartered Accourntants
Firm Regisiration No.: 101745W

G

CA K. P. Chaudhari '
Parrtner
Membership No.: 031661

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th October, 2021
UDIN: 21031661 AAAACGRSS3




INK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MH2H0PTC204223
Standaione Bulunce Sheet as af 315t March 20821
As al As at
Particulars Notes 31st March 2621 31st March 2020
(Rs. 060's) (Rs. 804'5)
ASSETS
Non-Carrent Assets
(&) Propesty, Plant and Equipment Ha) 7.893 10,334
{(b) Right of Use Assets 3w} 25.638 -
(c) Intangible Assets i) 1.036 2007
{d) Financial assets
Other Tinancial asscts 4(c) 73,112 56,123
(¢) Deferred tax assets (nel) 3 - 1.846
(f) Other Non-current assets 6 4,123 6.681
‘Total Non-Current Assets a 1,11,842 77041
Current Agsels
(2) lnventerics 7 51,762 3,680
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables Ala) 539,569 2,12183
(ii) Cash and cash eguivalents 4{b) 80,011 33,861
i} Mher Finaneial Assels 4(c) 37,603 4,002
{¢)-Other current assets 8 3,47.896 33,807
Total Current Assets b 10,56,841 3,07,533
Total Assefs e=ath 11.68,683 384,574
EQUITY AND LIABILUTIES
Equity
(s).Equity share capital 9(a) 6,000 6,006
(b) Other Equity 9{b} 3,61,930 204,347
Total equity d 367930 210,347
Linbilifies
Nop-current kiabilitics
(a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 10(a) 2,531 3882
Lease Lisbilitics 16¢b) 17,802 .
(b) Deferred Fax Liabilites (Nef) 5 2,029 .
Total Nen-Current Liabilities 3 22,362 3,883 |
Current liabilities
(2) Finencial liabilitics
Borrowings 10{a) 85,121 -
Trade Payables _ 16¢e}
Total owistanding dues of Micro entarprises
and Snitl wnierprives 16,485 8735
Yotal owstanding dues af Creditors other than
micre enlerpives and small enterprizes 227,128 37647
(b Prondigions i} 10,309 7707
{c) Current Tax Liabilities 2 22,218 12,465
(d) Other Current Liakilitiés i3 4,17.130 83,790
Total Current Liabilities. T 7,78,391. 1,760,344
Total Equity and Lisbilitles g=diet{ 11,468,683 3,84,574
Summary-of Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial staterents
For CVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors(af }
Firm Registration No:101745W YQK Indis Private Limited /
(W”t ﬁ (Q I /
CA X P Chaudhari fé,/ Arvind Kamath Gontam Rampelli
Partner :f el Direvtor Direator
Membiership No. 031667 7 ¢ DIN Q0656181 DINQ7263728
Place: Mumbai Place: Thane Place: Thane
Date: 25.10.2021 Darte: 25,10.2021 Date: 25, 1L2021




JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268ME2010PTC204223
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3151 March, 2021

For the year Forthe year
ended 31st Mavch,lended 37st March,
Particulars Note No. 2021 2020
{Rs. 000's Except | (Rs. #60's Except
EPS) EPS)

Revenue from Operations 14 12,15,033 10.20,590
Other Income 15 6,017 11,210
Total Income a 12,21,050 10,31,800
| Expenses
Purchase of Steck in Trade 302,679 255520
Changes in inventories of Stock in trade 16 (48,082) 38,340
Emplovee Benefit Expenses 17 3,26,260 1.88,590
Finance Costs 18 13,481 2816
Depreciation and amortizatipn expenses 19 14,173 5,289
Other Expenses 20 31,84,755 422363
Total Expeunses b 9,93,_266 9,114,320
Profit before Exceptional Hems and Tax ¢=a-b 2,271,784 1,17,480
Exceptional lems d 50 {56)
Profit Before Tax e=c+d 2,27,834 LI7424
Tax Expense
Current Tax 21 59,407 31,492
Deferred Tax 22 3,923 {1,259}
Total Tax Expense f 63,332 30,233
Frofit (Loss) After Tax g=e-f 1,64,502 87,191
Other Comprehensive Income h - -
Total Comprehensive Income j=g-+h 1,64,502 87,191
Earnings per Equity Share (in Rs.)
Basic 274.17 145.32
Dilated _ 27417 145,32

Summary of Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

For CVK & Associates

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fitm Registration No:101745W JNK India Private Limited V{)/

T

Arvind}(ﬁ/ath * Goutam Rampelli

Diréewor Director

DIN 00656181 DIN Q7262728
Place: Mumbai Place: Thane Plage: Thane

Date: 25.10.2021 Date: 25.10.2021 Date: 25.10.2021




JNK Iadia Private Limited
CIN: U2026RMH2010P 1204223
Staternent of Standslone Cash Flow for the year ended J1st March, 2021

Particulars For the year ended | For the pear ended
31st March, 2621 | 37s1 March, 2020
{Rs. i 000's) (R I 0107}

Cash flosss from operating activities
Profit before income tax 227,784 L% 480
Adfustments for Non Casie Hears:
Add: Prepreciation and amortization expense 14,173 5.280
Less: Write Back of Trade Payables {916) (3.633)
Add: Bad Debts Written OIT 28,732 339
Add: Bad Debts provision 2,214 2415
Less: Nalional Interast {100 (237}
Add: Notional expenses 22 274
Add:Tax Refund W/olf 50 .
L Adfustrcnts for Non Operating ftenis:
Add: Finance Charges incurred 13,481 2416
Less: Interest income {4,684} (1,383}
Lesy: Foreigi Exchange Rate Fluctuation (Gain)Toss 6.642 [(2.636)
Chanyes in Working Capital:
Decredse /(Increase) in Trade receivables (3.64,973) 1,96,701
Decrease/Increase) in Inventoriés {48,082) 29,340
{Decreasel Increase in Cutrent Tax Liabilities 338 4.031
(Increase}Decrease in Other Non-Current assels 2,536 4.427;
{Increase)/Decrease in Other Current asscis (2,95,007) {8,505)
(] Dccreasé)f Inerease in Trade Payables 178,147 (1,G3,23))
{Decrease)Inorease in (Gther current Habilites 3,33,340 {1.58,604)
(DecreascyIncrease iy Short Term Provisions 2,601 4,630
(DecreaseyIncrease in Short Term Borowings 3,121 -
Cash generated fram operations; 181,519 91,358
Income taxes paid {49.992) (184]14)
Net cash from operating activiiies 131,527 72,944
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment (36,37%) {5.874)
Purchase of Intangible Assets (64) (1712
Interest on Tertn Depasils 4,684 1,383
Fixed Deposits added (50,5913 {34,083
Net cash used in investing activities (82,346) (40,388}
Cash flows from flnsancing activities
Repayment of long term: boan ([.352) (2,902
Finance Charges incusred (13,481 (2,816
Enciease in lease labilities 17,802 -
Prividend Paid {6,000} -
Net cash from finaneing activities (3,031) (5,718}
Net increase/decreasein cash and cash equivalents 46,150 26,840
Cash and cash equivalents at beglnning of period 33,8061 7021
Cash and cash équivalents-at end of period 80,011 33,861

For CVK & Associates
Chartered Accouniants
Firm Registration No:101745W

CA X P Chandhari®™ **
Pariner

Membership no, 031664

-Forand on behalf of INK lndiai’/ivatc

Limited V/
| /Z (YJC /
gﬂi{!/h' Gmitam Rempelli]

Direcior Director
DINOOGS6I8] DIN 07262728

Place: Mumbai Place: Thane Piace: Thane

Date: 25.10.2021 Date: 25182071 Dae; 25,10.2023



JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MH2010PTCL04223
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021
(Rs. in 800's)

Other Equity . .
Particulars Eguity Share Capital - Total Efiu'ty Attributable
Reserves and Surplus ta Equity Holders of the
(Retained Larnings) company
Balance as on Ist April, 2019 6,000 117,156 123,156
Profit for the year - _ 87,189 87,189
Balance as on 3Ist March, 2620 6,000 . 204,346 2,10,346
Balance as on st April, 2020 6,000 2,04.346 2,10,346
Less Deposit Amount Written off {25} (25}
Less Shost Provision of earlier year
written off {338) (338}
Less Dividend Paid FY 2020-21 (6.000) {6,000}
Less Lease Liabities of Earlier year
writien off (554} {554y
Profit for the year - 1,64,502 1,64,502
Balance as on 31st March, 2021 6,000 3,61,936 3,67,93¢

For-CVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of INK India Private Lin?e;i

Firmn Registration No;101745W @ _ j .
aupfth gﬂtam Ramy m’»(\
p -2 \MJ/

(NN (B
. 3 ‘a,"”y .. '
S

CAKP Cha_ut'i]iﬂrl Arvin ; -,

Pariner Director, Directar \\:{’ ¥
Membership no. 031661 DIN §0656181 DING7262728 “Smemz
Place; Mumbai ‘ Place: Mumbaj Place: Munibai

Date: 26.10.2021 Date: 26.10.2021 Date: 26.10.2021

&



JNK INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U29268MH2010PTC204223
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2621

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION
Background:
INK India Private Limited was incorporated on 14th June, 2010. The Company’s
activity consists of Manufacturing, Trading, Matketing, Import, Export,
Consultancy, Design, Installation, Erection, and Supervision for fired heaters and
related products. JNK Heaters Co. Lid., which is one of the leading EPC
contractors in Korea, holds 26% of the shareholding in the Company. To support
Indian and Middle Eastern market, INK Heaters Co. Ltd., has incorporated INK
India Pvt Ltd. The Company’s registered office is at Gangotri Glacier Annex,
Kavesar, Opp. Vijay Nagari, Off. Ghodbunder Road, Thane (West)- 400607,

Maharashtra, India.

Impact of Covid 19 Pandemic:
The company management is live to the worldwide unprecedented economic
disraption caused by the pandemic Covid 19 and its effect on different business
activities. Accordingly, the company has assessed the impact of the said pandemic
on the economic environment in general as also on the viability, uncertainties and
operational as well as financial risks that different businesses are facing and are
likely to face in the times to come. It is observed that the risks arise mainly due to
possible constiaints on the delivery of goods and services under the changed
circumstances, wide fluctuation in commedity prices, customers cancelling or
postponing their discretionary spend and credit losses spiraling from the financial

difficulties faced by their customers,

In this background, the management has made initial assessment of likely adverse

impact on company's business, and believes that the impact is likely to be only




short term in nature. The management docs not perceive any medium to long tenm
risks in ensuing operations, capacity utilization or mceting other operational
parameters, fmancial liquidity and availability of capital resources. None of the
asset balances require any adjustment to their carrying values and the company

has neither received nor served any *force majeure’ notice,

None the less, the Company acknowledges that the Company’s business is also
likely to be affected because of the pandemic, to some extent or the other. Due to
the lock down on account of Covid 19 pandemic, the Company did suffer
temporary stoppage of operations and resultant loss of revenue. However, as the
impact of suddenness of the event eroded, the company quickly gained its ground
and resumed operations without much damage. Expansion plans have been kept
on hold and cost cutting measures have been implemented on all fronts. The

Company is also closely monitoring the circumstances as they evolve,

NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act’}, other provisions of the The Act (to the extent notified) read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis under the
historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments and defined
benefit plans for employees, which are measured at fair values,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
hability in an orderly transaction between the market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or

estimated using another valuation technique.




ii.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, the national currency of

India which the Company has selected as its functional currency.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Iud AS requires the
Management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates,
judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Accounting cstimates could change from period
to period and actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes
in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of the changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their

effects are separately disclosed in the notes {o the financial statements.

In particular, information about major areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the antounts recognized in the financial statements 1s given in the following notes:
a. Taxes

The major tax jurisdiction for the Company is India. Significant judgments are
involved in determining the tax liabilities including judgment on whether tax
positions adopted by the company are probable of being sustained in tax
assessments. A tax assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be
resolved over extenided time periods through a lengthy litigation process, at the
end of which even if the company wins, huge expenditure gets incurred in
litigation which has an impact on the financial results.

b. Impairment

Testing for impatrment, of assets in general and intangible assets in particular 1s a
very difficult task becaunse there is no objective way of doing the same, It inivolves

use of significant estimates and assumptions regarding economi¢ conditions,




iii.

iv.

growth rates and market conditions. Slight error or inaccuracy i such estimates

or assumptions can have a material impact on the financial results of the company.

Cash Flow Statement
Cash flow statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating,

investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported

using indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) -7

“Statement of Cash Flows”.
Under the indirect method, the net profit is adjusted for the effects of:
a. transactions of a non-cash nature
b. any deferrals or accruals of past or futurc operating cash receipts or
payments and
¢. items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash
flows.
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and demand deposits
with banks and are reflected as-such in the cash flow statement. Cash equivalents
are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the
date of acquisition), highly Hquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant 1isk of changes in

value,

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until
the property, plant equipment are ready for use, as intended by the Management,

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful Hves using the written down value method. The useful lives of material

assets are estimated as follows:-

Particulars Years

Plant and Equipment 10

Furniture and Fixtures 10




Office Equipment 5
Others

Temporary Office 5
Temporary Construction 5
Computer software 3
Computers 3

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are classified as capital advances under
other non-current assets and the costs of asscts not put to use before such date are
disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to
property, plant and equipment are capitalized only when it 1s probable that future
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably.

Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized while computing net prof, in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, when incurred. The cost and its corresponding
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale
or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed of are reported a1 the lower of
the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of tangible assets are meastred as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and ate recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assct is

defecognized.

Intangible asscts _

Intangible assets are stated at cost iess accumulated amortization and impairment.
Intangible assets having finite lives are amortized over their respective individual
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available
for use, The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a

number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and

[
LAY
o \t‘ }

- d




vii.

other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known
technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditure required to
obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and

useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial year end.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and are recognized in the profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of Property, Plant and Equipment as well as Intangible
Assets having indefinite life are reviewed for impairment at the end of each
financial year and also whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised

whenever the earrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Carrent / Non Current Classification
Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following
conditions:
a. 1t is expected to be realized or settled or is intended for sale orconsumption
in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
b. itis expected to be realized or settled within twelve months from the reporting
date;
c. m the case of an asset,
¢ 1t is held primarily for the purpose of providing services; or
¢ itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date;
d. inthe case of a liability, the company does not have an unconditional right to

defer settlement of liability for at least twelve months from the reporting date.
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All other assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current.

Financial Assets

Financial assets include investments in equity and debt securities, cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, employee and other advances and eligible current
and non-current assets.

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are measured as described
below:

a. Investments:

i. Financial instruments measured at amortised cost:

Debt instruments that meet the following criteria are measured at amortized
cost (except for debt instruments that are designated at fair value through
Profit or Loss (FVTPL) on initial recognition):
1. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets int order to collect contractual cash flows; and
2. The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

it. Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income (FVTOCH):

Debt instruments that meet the following criteria are measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (except for debt

mstruments that are designated at fair value through Profit or Loss

(FVTPL) on initial recognition)

1. The asset 1s held within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial asset;

and




2. The contractual terms of the instrament give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,.

Interest income is recognized in statement of profit and loss for FVTOCI

debt instruments. Other changes in fair value of FVTOC] financial assets

are recognized in other comprehensive income. When the investment is
disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in reserves

is transferred to statement of profit and loss.

il Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

(FVTPL):

Instruments that do not meet the amortised cost or FVTOCI eriteria are

measured at FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognized in statement of profit and loss. The gain or loss
on disposal is recognized in statement of profit and foss.

Interest income is recognized in statement of profit and loss for FVTPL
debt instruments. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized

when the Company’s right fo receive dividend is established.

b. Other Financial Assets
Other financial assets comprise of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and other assets. They are presented as cwirent asscts, except for those
maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as
non-current assets. These are initially recognized at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses. For most of these assets the carrying amounts

approximate fair value due to their short term maturity,

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the

«cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and
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the transfer qualifies for de-recognition. If the Company retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognizes a borrowing for the proceeds

received.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities include long and short-term loans and borrowings, batk

overdrafts, trade payables, eligible current and non-current liabilities.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value.

Subsequent to initial recognition financial Habilities are measured as described

below:

a. Trade and other Payables
Trade and other payables, which consist of Trade Creditors and Borrowings
are subsequently caried at amortized cost using the effective inferest
method. For Trade and other payables, the carrying amounts approximate

fair value due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the
Company’s balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is

discharged or cancelled or expires.

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks, short-term
deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes

i value.

Inventories
Inventories are assets hield forsale in'the ordinary course of business or in the form

of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the

rendering of services




Inventories held as on the reporting date are valued at the lower of cost and
estimated net realizable value. In some cases, manufacturing work-in-progress is
valued at lower of specifically identifiable cost or net realisable value. The cost of
inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
inctired in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The
cast of inventories is assigned by using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. When
inventories are sold or consumed in rendering services, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in which the related

revenue is recognized.

Borrewing Costs

Borrowing cests include Interest and other incidental costs.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
usc or sale. Qualifying asscts are assets that nccessarily takc a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended usc or sale. Investment income carned on
the teniporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on

qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

In case of general borrowings, the borrowing costs are capitalised as per the Indian

Accounting Standard 23,

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during extended periods in which
active development is interrupted and is ceased when substantially all the activities

necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Borrowing costs which are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
production or development of a qualifying asset are recognised as an expense in

the period in which they are incurred.
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Government Grants
Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of
resources to an entity in.return for past or future compliance with certain
conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity. They exclude those
forms of government assistance which cannot reasonably have & value placed
upon them and transactions with government which cannot be distinguished from
the normal trading transactions of the entity,
Government grants shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate.
A government grant may take the form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, such
as land or other resources, for the use of the entity. In these circumstances the fair
value of the non-monetary assetis assessed and both grant and asset are accounted
for at that fair value.
Employee Benefits
A, Short Term Employee Benefits:
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering
the service are classified as short term employee benefits and. they are

recognized in the period in which the employze renders the related service.

B. Post-employment benefits:
a. Provident Fund scheme and Employee State Insurance Scheme:
Eligible employees receive benefits of a state run provident fund and
insurance scheme. These are defined contribution plans. Both the eli gible
employee and the Company make monthly contributions to provident fund
plan and the insurance scheme equal to a specified percentage of the
covered employees' salary. There are no other obligations other than the

contribution payable to the relevant fund/ scheme.
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b. Gratuity scheme
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined contribution retirement plan
covering eligible employees. The Gratuity plan provides a Iump sum
payment to the vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment of an amount based on the respective
employees’ salary and tenure with the Company. Liabilities with regard to
Gratuity are determined in accordance with the actuarial valuation done by
LIC which runs a scheme and a fund to meet the gratuity liability as and
when it arises. The Company pays the necessary contribution as determined
by LIC. There are no other obligations other than to contribute to the fund

managed by LIC.

Revenue Recognition
As per Ind AS 115, revenue should be recognized when the performance
obligation is satisfied.
Performance obligation is a promise in a contract with customer fo transfer to
customer either:

¢ A good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) which is distinct or

s A series of goods or services that are substantially the same and that have

same patiern of transfer to the customer.

The company needs to identify the transaction price. Transaction price is the
amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods and services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.
Such a transaction price needs to be allocated to performance obligations in a
corntract.
An entity transfers control of a good or service over time and therefore satisfies a
performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time if any of the following

criteria is met;

{(a} The customer simultancously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the entity’s performance as the entity performs, or
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(b) The cntity creates and enhances an asset which is controlled by custorner
as it 1s created or enhanced, or

() The entity's performance does not create an asset with alterpative use to
the enfity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

In any other case, revenue is recognized at a point of time.

Expenditure

Expenses are accounted en accrual basis.

Taxes on Income

Tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of the taxable
income for the period in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961,

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which

case 1t is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax for cuwrrent and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet
date. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only ifthere is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended o realise the

asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simulfaneously.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends
cither to settle on a net basis, or o realize the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and Habilitics and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed al each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent thai it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred income tax assets and labilities are
measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
cnacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are. expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income fax assets and
liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the
enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset ig
recognized to the extent that if is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be

utilized.

Provision

Provision involving substantial degree of reliable estimation jn measurement is

recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or

constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an

outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities arc disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where
it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
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Foreign Currency Transactions

Since functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (INR) which is also
the presentation currency, all other currencies are accounted for as foreign
currency.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are
initially recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Monetary items denoimninated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at
the closing rates. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction.

Any income or expenditure, either on settlement or on translation, on account of
difference in exchange rate as on the reporting date and the exchange rate as on

the date of recognition of the item, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Earnings per share

Basic carnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss
(excluding other comprehensive income) for the year atiributable to the equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares is

adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a right issue, share split

- and reserve share splits (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of

equity shares.

Diluted earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss
(excluding other comprehensive income) for the year attributable to the equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity

shares.

=
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Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments arc those which create rights and abligations that
have the effect of transferring between the partics to the instrument one or more
of the financial risks inherent in an underlying primary financiaf instrument.
Derivative financial instruments are rccognized and measured at fair value,
Attributable transaction costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as
cost,

Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative financial instruments are measured as

described below:

a. Cash flow hedges

Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging instruments designated as a
cash flow hedge are recognized in other comprehensive income and held in cash
flow hedging reserve, net of taxes, a component of equity, to the extent that the
hedge is effective. To the extent that the hedge is ineffective, changes in fair value
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss and reported within foreign
exchange gains/(losses), net within results from operating activities. If the hedging
instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was
effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the forecasted transaction
occurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow
hedging reserve is transferred to the statement of profit and loss upon the
occurrence of the related forecasted transaction. If the forecasted transaction is no
longer expected to occur, such cumulative balance is recognized in the statement

of profit and loss.
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b. Other Derivative Instruments

Changes in fair vaiuc of foreign currency derivative instruments nof designated as
cash flow hedges are recognized in the statement of profit and loss and reported
within foreign exchange gains, net within results from operating activities,
Changes in fair value and gains/(losses) on settlement of foreign currency
derivative instruments relating to borrowings, which have not been designated as

hedges are recorded in finance expense.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a

contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of

an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(1 the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(i)  the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and

(iii)  the Compauy has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recoguizes a right-of-use

{ROU)asset and a coiresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which

itis a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases)

and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company

recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over

the term of the lease.

Valuation of interest in subsidiary

As per Ind AS 27 “Separate financial statements”, separate financial statements
arc prepared in accordance with all applicable Ind AS, except that investment in
subsidiary are accounted either:

(a) At cost

(b) At fair value through profit & loss as per Ind AS 109




INK India Private Limited
CIN; U2926¥MH2D1GI'T(3204223
Nofes Forming Part of Firancial Statoments for The Year Ended 31st March, 2021

NOTE 3(a): PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The changes in the carTying vaiug of the property, plant and equipment for the year ended 3 1.t March, 2021
(Rs. in 90¢'s)

Plant and
Equipment

Olfiec
Equipmoent

Furniture and| m
Fixtures Right of Use Temparary Total
Computers Consfruction

mmm-mn

Particwlars

it Valtic 25 on Ist Apni . 2020
Additions during the year
Beductions during fhe year
Gross Carrying Value as on 3 /et March, 2021

Accumulated Depreciation op Deletions
Ciress Carrying Yalue as on 3 {sg

Carrying Yalue as of st March, 2021
{Carrving Value as of 31s¢ Marceh, 2020

Deductions during the vear
Closing Grass Carry

ulated amortization

Amortizalion charged during the year
Closing accamufated ARmortization

Carrying Value as of 315t March, 202]
Carrying Vaine qs of 315t March, 2020




JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MH2010PTC264223

Notes Forming Part of Fipaneial Statements for The Year Ended 31st March, 2021

NOTE 4: FINANCIAL ASSETS

NOTE 4(a): TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at
31st Mar, 2021
{Rs. in $00's)

As at
3ist Mar, 2020
(Rs. in 6006}

Trade Receivables - Unsecured and Considered Good

Trade Receivables cutstanding for more than 6 Months 34,297 43,161
Others 5,13,050 1,74,586
547,347 217,747
Less: Allowance for Bad & Doubtful (7,778) (5.564}
5,39,569 2,12,183
As at As at
NOTE 4(b): CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 31st Mar, 2021 | 31sr Mar, 2020

{Rs. in 000's}

(Rs. in B00')

Balances with Banks

CC Afewith Kotak Mahindra Bank 586 253
(Securcd against Book Debts & Inventories) - -
Oiher Bank Balances 78,714 33,043
Cash in lTand 710 565
86,011 33.861
As_' at As at
NOTE 4(c): OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 31st Mar, 2021 | 3isf Mar, 2020

{Rs. in 600's)

{Rs. in 600%)

Non-Current

Terin Beposits with Bank * 73,112 56123
Current
Term Deposits with Bank® 37,603 4,002
1,184,715 60,124
* Refer Note 25 for details
As at As af

NOTE 5: DEFERED TAX ASSET/ LIABILITY 31st Max, 2001 | 31sr Mar, 2020

{Rs. in 000's) (Rs. i 000's)
Property, Plant and Equipment - 713
Expected Credit Loss - 1,330
Gratuity 99 47
ROU Assets - Deduction of lease rental 2.408 -
Total Deferred Tax Assets 2,506 2,114
Deferred Tax Liabilities {4,535} {214}
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (2,029} 1,894

*
e T




JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MIH2(010PTC204223

Nofes Forming Part of Financial Statements for The Year Ended 315t March, 2021

NOTE 6: OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As at
31st Mar, 2021
{Rs. in (600's)

As at
3lst Mur, 2020
(Rs. in 000's)

Guest House Deposit- Surat - 120
Guest House Deposil- Thaie - i5
Electricity Depaosit - 88
Sectirity Deposit-Niteo 383 566
Depozit- New office-Ieriors 1,290 2,523
Deposit- New office-Centrum 480 1,374
VAT Refund Receivable 1,261 1,261
Deposits with Sales Tax Departraent 708 733
4,123 6,681
As al As af
NOTE 7: INVENTORIES 31st Mar, 2021 | 3Ist Mer, 2020
(Rs.in 008's) | (R in 00')
Stock in Trade 51,762 3.680
51,762 3,680
o . - As at As at
I:(S)g'}f:TSS OTHER CURRENT 31st Mar, 2021 | 31st Mar, 2020
' {Rs. in 000's) {Rs. in 000%)
Deposits
Guest House Deposit 532 742
Interest Free Refundable Deposit- Adani Ports 15,182 -
Earnest Money Deposit o
Client 2392 1,918
Advances other than capitaf advances
Advances to Suppliers 1,65,193 3,230
Advances to Consultant - 3
Advances to Staff - 2,480
Others
Prepayments 9,512 6,475
GST Iaput Credit (Nonmal} 58,833 0,973
GST Input Credit (RCM) 432 299
GST Input (Eligible out of previous reversal} 1,523 13,706
GST Unrealised 7,546 -
GST TDS input 899 1,642
TCS Receivable FY 2020-21 183 -
Retention- Deblors 84 068 15,608
Laoan to Employees 692 470
Accrued Interest 10 260
3,47,896 53,807




JNK Endia Private Limited

CIN: U29268MH2010PTC204223

Notes Forming Part of Financial Staicments for The Year Ended 31st March, 2021

NOTE %: EQUITY

As at
3tst Mar, 2021
(Rs. in 008's)

As ar
31st Mar, 2020
{Rs. in G00's)

NOTE %(): EQUITY SHARY CAPITAL

AUTHORISED
20,00.000 Equity Shares of Rs,10/- cach 20,000 20,0046
20,000 20,060
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AN PAID UP CAPITAL
6,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid 6,000 6,000
6,000 6,000
8. Reconciliation of Shares cutstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.
Ag at 31st March, 2021
{088's) As at 31st March, 2020 (600's)
Number Rs. Number Rs.
At the beginning of the Period ity 6,000 600 6,000
Issued during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Cutstanding at the end of the period 680 6,060 608 6,600

The company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to
dividends and share in the company’s residual assets on winding up. The voting rights of an equity shareholder
on a poll (not on show of Lands) are in propertion to hisfits share of the pakdup equily share capital of the
company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently
payable has not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead 1o their forfeiture. On
winding up of the company, the holders of équity shares will be entitled 10 receive the residual asseis of the

company, remaining after meeting all liabilities, in proportion to the nunber of eqirity shares held,

b. Details of Shareholders helding mere than 5 % of Ordinary Shares

Ag at 31st March, 2021
(000's) As at 31st March, 2020 (008's)
Name of the Sharcholders Number % Holding Number % Holding
Mascat Capital & Markefiig Pyt Lid 312 52% 312 32%
INK Heaters Co. Lid 156 26% 136 26%
R.Goutam 72 12% 72 12%
Dipak Bharuka 60 1G%, 60 10%
600 100% 134 100%
Asat As at
NOTE 9(b): OTHER EQUITY 31st Mar, 2021 | 31st Mar, 2020
(Rs. in (00') (Rs. in 060's)
Retained Earnings
At the Beginning of the Accounting Period 2,04,346 1,17,156
Additions During the Year 1,64,502 87,191
Less Deposit Amount Written off (25) -
Less Short Provision of earlier year written off (338} -
Less Dividend Paid FY 2020.21 (6,000) -
Less Lease Liabities of Earlier year written off (554) .
3,61,930 2,04,347




JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MHZ010PTC204223

Notes Forming Part of Financinl Statements for The Year Ended 315t March, 2021

NOTE 10{a) : BORROWINGS#+

As at
31st Mar, 2021
(Rs. in 000's)

As af
Iist Mar, 202)
(Rs. in 808')

Noea-Current
Secured

Car Loms 2.531 3,883
Linsecured
Loans from Directors - .
2,531 3,883
Currenf
Secured
Balance in CC Account - SBi 85,121 .
85,121 -
** Refer Note 26 for details
As at As at
NOTE 16(b): LEASE LIABILITIES 3ist Mar, 2021 | 31st Moy, 2020
{Rs. in 800"} (Rs. in 00f1's)
office & Interior Leases 17,802 -
17,802 -
As at As at
NOTE 18(c): TRADE PAYABLES 31st Mar, 2621 | 31st Mar, 2020

(Rs. in 000's)

(Rs. fir G00's)

Trade Pavabies- Other than MSME

Creditor for Expenses 1,36,865 45,906
Creditor for Goads 90,233 1,650
Trade Pavables - Covered upder MSME
Creditor for Expenses 16,485 8735
243,613 66,282
As at As at
NOTE 11: PROVISIONS 31st Mar, 2021 | 3lsr Mar, 2020
{Rs. in 000's) {Rs. in 000's)
Current
Provision for Car Hiring Charges 902 1,042
Provision for Warranty 5,775 3,775
Provision for Professional fees 52 148
Provision for Statulery Audii fees 694 450
Provision for GST Audit fees 786 .
Provision for transpottation Charges 1,509 -
Pravision for Employee Benefits
Group Gratoity 600 282
18,369 7,747




JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MH2016PTC204223

Netes Forming Part of Financial Statements for The Year Ended 33st March, 2021

NOTE 12: CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

As al
31si Mar, 2021
(Rs. in 000's)

As x
3st Mar, 2620
(Rs. in 000's)

Provision for Tax Payable FY 2020-21 { Net of TDS and Advance Tax) 22,218 -
Pravision for Tax Payable FY 2019-20 ( Net of TDS and Advance Tax) - 72,463
22,218 12,465
As at As at
NOTE 13: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 31st Mar, 2023 | 3Ist Mar, 2020
(Rs. in 000's) {Rs. in 004's)
Lease Liabikities 9,560 -
Advance from Clients 1,88.403 40,338
Reimbursement Staff 525 586
Duties and Taxes Payable
TDS Payable 62,837 10,459
GST Payable 51,041 2,251
TCS Payable 227 -
Retention Money of Supplicrs 13,111 9,984
Salary Payable 4,697 6,912
[ncentive Payable~ Employees 38,400 93571
Incentive Payable- Dircctors 44,989 -
Bonus Payable _ 995 994
Profession Tax Payabic- Labour 13 5
ESIC Employee Contribution I 2
P.F.Employee Contribuition 254 218
P.F.Labour Employec Contribution 172 304
Profession Tax Payable-Employees 20 18
Deposits froin Labour({ Refundable) _ 25 -
Car Loans (Current Liability Portion) 1852 2,358
4,17,130 3,796




JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MH2010PTC204223
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements for The Year Ended 31st March, 2621

(Rs. in 000's)

For the vear For the year
iy . R I ended 31st ended 3 1st
NOTE 14: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS March, 21 March, 20
(Rs. in 400's) {Rs. in 000's)
A. Revenue from Contracts
Sale of Goods(Traded Goods)
Dorestic Goods 421,728 217,406
Export 1,16,354 62975
{Sale of Services
Domestic Supply 77,455 4,78,295
Export 5,90,283 237916
12,085,820 10,16,593
Disaggregate revenne information
Supply of goods 538,082 280,381
Engineering service 1,84,611 22,182
Erection & Commissioning Charges 454,314 363083
Works contract charges 28,813 3,20,947
Total 12,05,820 10,16,593
B. Other Revenue
Duty Drawback Recejved 266 2,186
Duty credit scrip sold 8,948 L8I17
Total (B) . 9,213 3,997
Total (A+B) 12,15,833 10,20,5%4
For the year For the year
i . ended 3]st ended 3]st
NOTE 15: OTHER INCOME March, 21 March, 20

_ (Rs, in 000's)

Interest on Fixed Deposiis, 4,684 1,383
Interest on Loan Reed 72 -
Write-back of Trade payahles 916 3,635
Gain on foreign exchange fluctaations - 2,636
Bad debts Recovered - 2,135
Expenses Provision Write Back 72 -
Notional Interest - Ind AS 109 190 237
Sale of Scrap - Lo
Notice Pay Recovery 79 9
Misc Income 3 70
6,017 11,216




JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MH2010PTC204223
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements for The Year Ended 31st Mareh, 2021

NOTE 16: CHANGES OF STOCK IN TRADE

For the vear
ended 31st
March, 21

{Rs. in 00¢'s)

For the year
ended 3 1st
March, 20

(Rs. In 000's)

{Rs. in 0G's)

Opening Stock 3,680 43,020
Less: Closing Stock (51,762) {3,680
{(Increase) Decrease in Inventorics {48,082) 39,340
For the year For the year
NOTE 17: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES ;;:fghi’ 1;; ;;:fgf ;50’

(Rs. in 000's)

Salaries and Wages:

a) Salaries 1,79.182 118,206
b) Director's Remuneration 1,35,600 62,900
Contribution to Provident Fuend and Other Funds:
a) Provident Fund 4,681 3,011
b} Gratuity Scheme 921 392
¢} Employees State Insurancé Fund 78 77
d) Maharashtra Labour welfare Fund 11 7
Welfare Expenses
a}.Ex Gratia 1,617 1,605
) Staff Welfare 2418 2,153
¢} Staff Insurance 1,950 639
3,26,260 1,88,990




JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MH2010PTC204223
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements for The Year Ended 31st March, 2021

NOTE 18: FINANCE COSTS

For the year
ended 31st
March, 21

{Rs. in 000's)

For the pear
ended 31sf
March, 20

(Rs. inn 400's)

a) Interest

Interest on Overdraft/ Cash Credit Facility 121 112
Interest on Car Loan 501 626
Interest on Office Lease 1,724 -
Interest on Interior & Furniture Lease 474 -
b} Other Borrowing Costs - -
LC Amendment & Stamp Duty Charges 14 77
Bank Guarantee charges 623 1,449
LC issuance charges 18 -
Exchange Fluctuation Loss 6,642 -
Facility fees 983 -
Loan Processing fees 2,037 -
Bank charges 187 105
CC Renewal Charges 156 446
13,481 2,816
For the year For the year
NOTE 19: DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION ended 31st ended 3isr
EXPENSES March, 21 March, 20
(Rs. in 000's) {Rs. in 000"s)
Depreciation of Taugible Assets 4,634 3,848
Amoriization of Intangible Assets 1,015 1,441
Amortization of Leases 8,524 -
14,173 5,289




JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MH2010PTC204223
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements for The Year Ended 31st March, 2021

For the year Forthe year
X e ended 3151 ended 3 st
NOTE 20: OTHER EXPENSES March, 21 March, 20

{Rs. in 000's) (Rs. i Bi1's)
Project Expenses
Detailed Engincering Charges 2.028 144
Fabrication Charges - 3,245
Insurance 10,684 -
Air Shipment Charges 331 380
Technical Service charges 4488 4,191
Catalyst Loading & Unloading 3,020 11,809
Track & Trailer Hiring - 160
Civil Work 190 1,743
DORC Nigeria Project Expenditure 29,579 55,796
Erection & Comimissioning Charges 47,361 74,057
Site Rent 17 -
Site Power & Water 1,273 -
Electrical & Instrumentation charges 562 2,137
Incentive o Supplier 12 -
Inspection Testing Charges 3,439 5,273
Site Expenses 1,056 2,393
Refractory Application Works 9,577 6,086
Crane Hire 1,400 8319
Manpower Cost §.522 13,704
Data Entry Charges 3,178 -
Design & Drafting Work 1,708 1.486
Insulation work charges 6,350 760
Rolling & Bending work - 784
Packing & Forwarding Charges 559 240
Misc debits/credits (0) -
Supervision charges 189 -
Consultancy Charges paid - 298
Rent on Machinery 415 -
Torquing charges 150 -
Pickling and Passivation Expenses - 321
Freight & Transportation Charges 93238 47,806
Clearing & Forwarding Charges 2,011 3,072
LD Charges 557 15.864
Total {a) 147,984 2,060,067




JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MH2010PTC204223
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements for The Year Ended 31st March, 2021

NOTE 20: OTHER EXPENSES

For the year
ended 31st

For the year
ened 31sr

March, 21 Mureh, 20

{Rs. in 000's) (Rs. in 000's)
Other Expenses
Legal, Professional & Conswdtancy Charges 140,190 88,039
Traveling & Conveyance [1,226 23,291
Office/Guest house Rent 1,752 8,617
Hotel Expenses 381 4279
Food Expenses 402 1,956
Lunch & Dinner Expenses 303 803
Tea & Refreshments 283 200
Office Maintenance 13 1,323
Office Fxpenses 278 2444
House keeping Charges 170 73
Commission Charges 31,248 -
Guest Holise Expeses 1,323 1,561
Tender Charges 36 -
Statutory Audit Fees 750 500
GST Andit fees 850 -
ROC filing Fees 6 42
Bad debts 28,732 539
Scftware Expenses 203 545
Miscellaneous Expenses 28 392
Printing & Stationery 1,234 1,643
Telephone & lnternet Charges 646 668
Rates & Taxes 2,947 4,116
Provision for bad debts 2214 295
Repairs & Mainienance 1,537 1,540
Handling Charges 288 65
AMC Charges 515 612
Training & Recrnitment Charges 259 118
Sponsorship Fees - 122
Insurance 197 1,278
Business Promotjon Expenses 711 1,654
Interest on Statutory Payments 1,872 1426
Penalty on statutory payments 34 -
Donation b -
CSR Expenses 1,606 -
Late Payment Charges - 0
ISO certification charges 16 -
Registration fees - 62
Rent- Vending Machine 12 -
Rent- Machinery - 102
Legal Expenses - 75
Seminar fees 25 bt
Penalty for Safety Vidletion - 10
Petrol & Fuel 1,235 109
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(Rs. in 600's)

Postage & Courier 449 428
Electricity Exp 993 413
Warranty Proviston - 4.195
Notional Expenses 212 274
Container Hiring Charges 18 128
Car Hiring Charges 1,480 4,131
Water Charges 7 2
Total (b 2,36,771 1,62,298
Total (a+h) 384,758 4,22,365
For the year For the year
- ended 3{st ended 315t
NOTE 21: CURRENT TAX March, 21 March, 20

(Rs. in 000's)

Current Tax for the profits of current period 59,407 30,879
Short Provision of Previous year - 614
Total 59,407 31492
For the year For the year
NOTE 22: DEFFERED TAX ;‘;::Sh? 125; ;;’ffflf -
(Rs. in 000's) (Rs. in 000's)
Deferred tax Expenses/(Income) 3,925 (1.259)
Totay T 3,925 (1,259)




JNK India Private Limited
CIN: U29268MH20107TC204223
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements for The Year Ended 31st March, 2021

Reconeiliation of Tax Expense and Accouanting profit multiplied by Tax Rate

Particulars

For the year
ended 31st
March, 21

(Rs. in 000's)

For the year
ended 315t
March, 20

{Rs. in 060's)

Accounting Profit before Tax 227,834 117424
Enacted Income Tax Rate 25.17% 25.17%
Computed expected tax expense 57,341 29,553
ADD: Effect of expenses disallowed .
Depreciation as per Companies Act, 2013 3,567 1,331
Expenses inadmissible 1,421 298
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debis 357 734
Provision for Gratuity (99) 25
LESS: Effect of expenses allowed

Depreciation as per Income Tax Act, 1961 973 1,002
Notional interest not having any tax implication - 6
Actual Rent Expense Allowed (far Leases) 2,408 -
Add: Shart Provision in previous year - Gi4
Provision made as per sccounts 59407 37,493
Effective tax rate 26.07% 26.82%

For the year

Forithe year

NOTE 23: CONTINGENT LAABILITIES ‘;I:;flf o ;Z:;Zf’z’;
{Rs. in 000's) {Bs. in 000's)

Bank guarantees Pending at the end of the year ' 94,173 84.602

Pending Statutory Demainds af the end of the year:

Income Tax (A.Y. 2013-14} 1,995 1,995

CST(F.Y. 2011-12) 10,532 10532

CST(F.Y.2013-14) 2,613 2,613

The Income Tax Demands for AY 2013-14 relate to disallowance of TDS Credit pertaiiiimg to
income booked in the relevant Assessment Years but appearing in Form 26AS of the subsequent
Assessment Years. The company has submitted online responses disagreeing with the Demands.

The CST Demand for FY 2011-12 is due to disallowance of Sales o/s &(2) of the CST Act, 1956 by
the Department during Assessment for which the company bas filed an appeal. The Final Hearing
has been done with Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax on 07.03.2017.The outcome of this matter is
expected to come in a positive manner and these probable liability may get waive off in future,

The CST Demand for FY 2013-14 pertains to CST lability due to non-Submission of C Forms. The
Company hag filed Appeal with Deputy Commissioner-of Sales Tax (Appeals} against the order of
Assistant Commissioner of Sales Tax. The Hearinig was concluded and the Order is pending.
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NOTE 24: EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the period ended | For the period ended

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2029
(Rs. in 000’s except (Rs. in 000’s except
EPS and Per Share = EPS and Per Share
Data) Data)
Profit attributable fto equity
1,64,502 87,191
Shareholders
Weighted Average number-of 600 600
Equity  Shares  Outstanding
during the year
Basic EPS (in Rs.) 274.17 145.32
Diluted EPS (in Rs.) 274.17 145.32
Nominal value per share (Rs.) 10 10

NOTE 25: DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO TERM DEPOSITS {REFER

NOTE 4{(c))
Particulars 2024-21 2019-20
. , (Rs. in (Rs. in
Maturity Type 000°s) 000’s)
wew ;
3-12 Months Earmarked Balances 3 1,386. 4,002
Others 6,217 -
*% :
More than 12 Months Earmarked Balances 73,112 56,123
Others . i
Tetal 1,10,715 60,125 |

** Earmarked Balances are Bank Balances specifically maintained for providing

Bank Guarantees for the Projects




NOTE 26: DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO BORROWINGS (REFER

NOTE 19a)
Borrowings (Rs. in 000°s)
Particulars Car Loan Car Loan Car Loan Car Loan of India -
from Kotak | from Yes frem Yes from Kotak T""
Mahindra | Bank Bank Mahindra [ ——
———— ——— L Account
Instalment per
Month (Rs.) 28 77 63 28 NA
EMI (Nos.)
Outstanding as
on 31/3/20 44 49 i6 48 NA
EMI (Nos.)
Outstanding as
on 31/3/21 32 37 4 36 NA
Rate of Interest 9.48% 8.60% 9.40% 9.48%
Amount
outstanding as
on 31.03.2021 796 2,478 246 864 85,12]
Amount
outstanding as
on 31.03.2020 1,046 3,139 944 i,111 -
Total
Instalments 60 60 60 60 1 NA
December-
First Instalment 18 May-19 July-18 1 March-19 | NA
Hyundai Hyundai Book Debts,
Secured Against | Car BMW Car | MG Hector | Car Inventories




NOTE 27: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

A. Related Parties:
Holding Company - Mascot Capital & Marketing Pvt. Ltd.

Investor Company - INK Heaters Co. Ltd, Korea

Wholly Owned Subsidiary- INK India Pvt. FZE

Directors -

Mr. Arvind Kamath
Mr. R. Goutam

Mr. B HXim

Retative of Director- Ms. Prajwal Kamath
Key Management Personnel (KMP) — Mr. Dipak Bharuka, CEQ

Relative of KMP — Ms. Priya Bharuka

Entity with Joint/ Common Contrel -
JNK Heaters Co. Ltd. (Project Office India),
Mascot Dynamics Pvi Lid,

Mascot Business Solutions Pvt. Ltd,

Porvair Filtration India Pvt. Ltd,

B, Related Party Transactions:

Transactions with the related parties as defined in the Accounting Standard

are given below:

For the year | For the year
Name of Relationshi Nature of ended 31% ended 31
related party P transaction March, 2021 | March, 2020
(Rs. in 000°s) | (Rs. in 000°s)
Arvind Director Director’s
Kamath Remuneration 82,000 38800
Arvind Director Reimbursement of
Kamath expenditure 20 144
Prajwal Relative of B
Kamath Director | ent Paud NIL 180
. . Legal and
B.HKim Director Professional Fees 14.800 12,800
W € 3
o
kq &r _gf/




Name of
related party

Relationship

Nature of
transaction

Far the year
ended 31
March, 2021
(Rs. in 000°s)

For the year
ended 31
Muarch, 2020
(Rs. in 000°s)

Director’s

R. Goutam Director Remunesation 53.600 24,100
R. Goutam Director Reimbgrsemen{ of
expenditure 37 280
Dipak CEO Remuneration
Bharuka (Including Bonus
and Arrears) 47,296 33138
Dipak CEO Reimbursement of
Bharuka Expenses 319 903
. Relative of .
Priya Bharuka Key Person Professional Fees 4.000 1125
Mascot Entity with
Business Joint or Professional
Solutions Pvt | Common Services .
Ltd Control NiL 14,003
JNK Heaters Investor :
Co, Lid, company Sale of Service N
Korea 4,47,767 257,816
INK Heaters Exp t.enses.for
Co. Ltd. Investor services &
Korea ’ Company rglmbursement
given NiL 764
INK Heaters Investor
Co. Lid, Sale of Goods
Korea Company
42.856 63,504
g:]f{L%eaters Investor Reimbgrsement of
Korea ’ company expenditure(Recd )
o NIL 390
'gj)}'{;;‘iaw 5| Investor Advances 'Rec.:d in
Korea company course of business
83,808 1,08,037




For the vear

For the year

Name of Relationshi Nature of ended 31% ended 317
related party P transaction March, 2021 | March, 2020
(Rs. in 000°s) | (Rs. in 000s)
Mascot _Legal &
) . Professional Fees-
Capital & Holding R
o Enginecring &
Marketing Company Consultanc
Pvt. Lig. Subtdnty
Services 3,425 577
Entity with
Mascotl Joint or Sale of duty credit
Dynamics .
Pvt. Lid Common scrips
' Control 8,948 1,811
; Entity with
Mascot. Joint or Reimbursement of
Drynamics <
Common Expenses
Pvt. Ltd
Control " NIL
Mascot Enﬁty with
. Joint or .
Dynaniics Loan Given
L Common
Pvt. Ltd P :
ontro 30,000 NIL
. Entity with
Pprva_:'r Joint or Sale of goods
Filtration Common
India Pvtlad |~ ) .
—oiltro 40 66,550
Porvair . .
Filtration ?cﬁzz:;foi Sale of Service
India Pvt Lid B ' NIL 150
Porvair Ez'{nty with Advances Reed in
. . Joint or ; .
Filtration Cormmon course of business
India Pvt Ltd
Contro} NIL 47
Entity with | Sale of
JNK Heaters | Joitit or Engineering,
Co. Ltd (POI) | Commeon Erection & Works
Control contract Services 256,150 3.67.326
Entity with o
JNK Heaters | Joint or Sﬁ;ﬁiﬁ?em of
Co. Ltd (POT) | Common (REC a)
Control - NIL 3




For the year | For the year
Name of Relationshi Nature of ended 31 ended 31
related party p transaction March, 2021 | March, 2020
(Rs. in 000°s) | (Rs. in 000°s)
Entity with .
INK Heaters | Joint or ‘s:i;zz?; bizifelsn
Co. Ltd (POI) | Common 3
Control 1,49,742 NIL
INK India Who]ly Erection Service
Owned Charges —
Pvt. FZE e
Subsidiary. Expenses _
30,010 56,710
INK India Wholly Advances given in
_ Owned GO
Pvt. FZE S course of business
Subsidiary
33,548 17,697
JNK India Wholly Reimbursement of
Owned
Pvt. FZE o g expenses:
Subsidiary
. 4,305 1,315
C. Related Party Balances:
Following are the related party outstanding balances;
Ason31% | Ason 31
N £ the Relat Kat ¢ March, Muarch,
ameo _the elated Relationship ature o 2021 2020
Party Balance
(Rs. in (Rs. in
000°s) 000’s)
JNK Heater Co. Ltd, Ipve_stor Trade Payable 1357 1357
Korea Company
. i ) Professional :
B.H.Kim Director Fees Payable 2,817 9,144
_ Entity with
JNK Heaters Co. Ltd — | 1) Common | L72d€ 2.07,967 87,334
POI Receivable
Conirol

e
. / \k..»/’/




Ason 31% | Advon 31°
N ¢ the Related Nat ¢ March, March,
ame o € nelated gt s amre o 2021 2028
Party Relationship Balance
{Rs. in (Rs. in
000’s) 000°s)
) Entity with Advance Recd
INK Heaters Co. Ltd - Joint/Common | in course of 97,627 NIL
POl .
Control business
JNK Heaters Co. Ltd, Investor Tradc': 72,198 69.753
Korea Company Receivable
. Advance Recd
INK Heaters Co. Lid, Inves;o; in course of 88,585 40,291
Korea Company .
business
Mascot Capital & Holding Engmeez‘mg & )
. : Consuliancy 54 Nil
Marketing Pvt. Ltd. Company . 7
Services
Entity with Trade
Mascot Dynamics Pvt Ltd | Joint/eommon ade Nil 1,811
. Receivable
control
TS . Entity with :
Forvair Filtration India , Trade .
Pyt Lid Joint/common Receivable Nil 39286
control
Porvair Filiration India Ep-.my W,lth f\dvanc? Recd ;
Joint/common | in course of Nil 47
Pvt. Ltd . :
conirol business
Mascot Business Solutions En:cﬂy with Professional )
R Joint/common . Nii 15,123
Pvt. Ltd . Services
control
Erection
INK India Pvt. FZE Wholly Owned | Service Nil 173
Subsidiary Charges |

Expenses




Ason31% | Ason 317
N fthe Related Nal ¢ March, March,
ameo ¢ Kelate T . ature o 2021 2020
Party Relationship Balance
{Rs. in (Rs. in
000’s) 600°s)
Reimbursement
INK India Pvt. FZE Wholly Owned | ¢ expenses- 2,673 1,315
Subsidiary .
Given
Priya Bharuka Relative of Key .Profe‘tssmnal 2428 450
Person Services
Arvind Kamath Director Director’s 27,508 (386)
Remuneration
w , Director’s
R Goutam Director " 17,481 468
Remuneration
R Goutam Director Reimbursn::men! 158 188
of expenditure
Dipak Bharuka CEOQ Remuneration 15,765 2,440
Dipak Bharuka CEO Reimbursement 176 115

of expenditure




NOTE 28(A): NET GAIN OR LOSS ON FOREIGN CURRENCY

TRANSLATION

Particulars

FY 2020-21
(Rs. In 0060°s)

FY 2019-20
(Rs. In 000°s)

Net Loss/(gain) on Foreign

Exchange Fluctuations 6,642 (2,636)
NOTE 28(B): FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Particulars FY 2024-21 FY 2019-20
Amt in Amount | Amt in Amtin | Amtin | Amount in
in Euro . ANR (In
USD (In (In INR(In USD (In | Euro 000°s)
000°s) 000°s) 000’s) 000’s) (fn
000°s)
Expenditure 965 NIL 71,260 1,145 128 93218
in foreign
currency
Earnings in 9,368 168 706,637 4,505 NIL 3,20.892
foreign
! currency
NOTE 2B8(C): FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Details of earnings in foreign exchange:
Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
(Rs. In 000’s) {Rs. In 000°s)
Export of goods calculated 1,16,354 62,975
on FOB basis
Professional and 796
Consultancy fees
Other Income 5,90,283 257,120
Total Earning in foreign 7,06,637 3,20,892
Exchange

\(O\

i
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Details of expenditure in foreign exchange:

Particulars FY 2020-2}1 FY 2619-20
(Rs. In 008°s) (Rs. Inn 600’5}
Import of goods calculated on CIF basis
{i) Raw Material
(i) Component and spare parts 11,871 18,688
- 5020
Professional and Consultancy fees 26,948 12,800
Other expenditure 32,381 56,710
Total Expenditure in Foreign 71,200 93,218
Exchange

NOTE 29: PAYMENTS MADE TO THE AUDITOR

FY 2020-21 FY2019-20

Particulars _
{Rs. In 009’s) (Rs. In 000°s)

As Auditors 750 500

Total 750 500




NOTE 30: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
A. Financial Instruments by Category (As on 31" March, 2021)

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, unbilled revenues,
borrowings, trade payables, other current financial assets and liabilitics approximate
their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The
Company’s long-term debt has been contracted at market rate-s of interest.
Accordingly, the carrying value of such long-term debt approximates fair value,
Investments m liquid and short-term mutual funds, which afe classified as FVTPL
arc measured using net assct values at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity
held, Fair value of investments in equity instruments classified as FVTOCI is

determined using market and income approaches.

The bifurcation of financial instruments by category is as follows: (Rs. In 000°s)

Particulars As at 3157 March, 2021 As at 35T March, 2020
FVYTPL Amortized FVTPL Amortized
Cost Cost

Assets — Non Current i . i .

Other financial

Assets _ - ~73.112 - 56,123
Assets- Current -

Trade .

Receivables - 5,39,569 - 212,183

Cash and Cash

Equivalents - 80,008 - 33,861

Loans J . . -

Other financial '

Assets - 37,603 - 4,002

TOTAL - 7,30,292 - 3,06,169
Liabilities

Borrowings 4,384 6241
Lease Liability - 27,368 . -
Trade Payables ' - 243,613 - 66,382
TOTAL . 2,75,365 - 72,623




B. Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair values of the financial assets and Habilities are the amounts that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction
between market parficipants at the measurement date,

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair
values of the financial instruments that are

(a) recognised and measured at fair value and

{b) Measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are discloséd i the
financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into three levéls
prescribed under the Indian Accounting Standards. An explanation for each level is
given below. :

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted
prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market 18 determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. 1f
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2. Instruments in the level 2 category for the
Company include foreign exchange forward contracts.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inpuis is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in this level.

C. Financial Assets (other than investment in subsidiaries) and liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss at each reporting date

(Rs. In 000’s)

Particulars As at As at
315! March, 315 Mareh,
2021 2020
Level 3 Level 3
Other nen-curtent NIL NiL
Financial assets
(Fixed Deposits)




Non-current financial assets (other than investment in subsidiaries) and
liabilities measured at amortised cosf at each reporting date

(Rs. In 600°s)
Particulars As at As at
315" March, 315 March,
2021 2020
Level 3 Level 3
Loans - -
Borrowings 4,384 6,241
Lease Liability 27,368 _ -

a. The Company’s borrowings have been contracted at market rates of interest.

Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowings (including interest
accrued but not due) is approximately equal to the fair value,
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank
balances other than cash and cash equivalents, current loans, other current
financial assets, current borrowings, trade payshles and other financial
liabilities are approximately equal to their fair values due to the short-term
maturities of these financial assets / Habilities.

b. There have been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the
years ended 31st March, 2021.

D. Fair value of assets measured at amortized cost

(Rs. In 604°s)
Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
., Fair
Carrying Fair value | Carrying |, ..
amount amount '
Financial Assets
Other non-current
assets
Guest House Deposit NIL NIL 135 135
Office Deposit 1,770 1,770
Total financial assets 1,770 1.770 135 135
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 4,384 4,384 6,241 6,24]
Lease Liability 27,368 27368 - -
Total financial liabilities 31,752 31,752 6,241 _ 6,241
. / TN
_\{(\ W /@;ﬂ%
A N
¥,




NOTE 31: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposure to the following 1isks arising from financial
instruments: -

A. Credit risk

i, Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or
counter party to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables), deposits with banks and other
financial instruments. Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter
party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed upon. Details of the
same have been discussed below.

1. Exposure to Risk

a. Tradereceivables

The Company extends credit to customers in the normal course of business.
The Company considers factors such as financial conditions / market
practices, credit track record in the market, analysis of historical bad debts and
past dealings for extension of credit to customers. Individual credit limits are
set accordingly. The Company monitors the payment track record of the
customers ‘and ageing of receivables. Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored. The Company considers the concentration of risk with
respect to trade receivables as low.

b. Ageing Analysis of debtors as on:

Particulars Ason As en
31% March, 2021 315t March, 2020
(Rs. In 000°s) (Rs. In 000°s)
Up to 60 days 453,849 51,441
60 days to 90 days 28,783 91,878
91 days to 180 days 30,418 31,267
181 days fo ] year _ 8,406 31,187
1 year to 3 years 22,600 8,954
Maore than 3 years 3,291 3,620
- 5,47,347 2,17,747




. Change in allowance for Bad and Doubtful Debts

As on 315 March,
2020 (Rs. In 000s)

As on 31% March, 2021
{Rs. 1n 000°s)

Particulars

As at the beginning of the 5.564 2,048
Year

Provisions during the year 4,159 5072
Utilised during the year 1,945 2,157
As at the end of the year 7,778 5,564

B.

i.

ii.

. Other finaneial instrumenis

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution,
market reputation, financial strength/rating and service standards to select the
banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. Generally, the

balances are maintained with the institutions from which the Company has

also availed borrowings.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk i$ defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to
settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. For the
Company, liguidity risk arises from obligations on account of financial
liabilities - borrowings, trade payables and other financial Habilities. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring losses or
risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and ‘matching the maturity profiles of the
financial assets and liabilities. It maintains adequate sources of financing
including loans, debt and other borrowings,

Exposure to Risk:

The company has sufficient Bank balance to discharge it's immediate cash
flows.

(Rs. 000’s)
Particulars Less than 1 year | Between 1 to5 | Exceeding 5
years years

Borrowings 86,973 2,531 o
(Including current (2,358) (3,883) ()
liability)
Lease Liability 9,566 17.802 -
(Including current ) (=) )
liability) -
Trade Payables 243,613 - -

(66,382) © ()

\1:‘"!‘\_ /{:}///
Vg, B




Particulars Less than 1 year | Between 1 to5 | Exceeding S
years years

Other Current 4,05,712 - -

Liabilities (81.432) () (~)

Figures in bracket pertain to Previous Year.
. Market Risk

i. Market risk is the risk that the fair vatue of future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Such changes
in the values of financia! instruments may result from changes in the foreign
currency exchange rates, inlerest rates, credit, liquidity and other market
changes.

ii. Exposure to Risk

The Company has entered inte Construction contracts wherein the revenue is
receivable in foreign currency. These are not hedged. _

Following are the receivables and payables, value of which will be affected
by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

Particulars Amousntin Amount in
USD 000°s Euro 000’s.
Receivables _
JNK Heaters Co. Ltd., Korea 786 168
(926) ()
Dangote Petroleum Refinery 1,792 .
© )
IAdvance to Stainalloy Netherlands BV 569 -
=) )
Advance to Yangzhou Lontrin Steel 13 -
(- (=)
Pavables
INK India Pvi. FZE 36 .
(20) )
INK Heaters Co. Ltd., Korea 18 -
) {-)
K Tech Co Lid 367 -
(-) (-}




Particulars

Amount in
USD 000°s

Antount in
Euro 000’s

Advance from INK Heaters Co. Ltd. Korea

1,205
(334)

(..

Figures in bracket pertain to Previous Year.

NOTE 32: DISCLOSURE ON LEASES (Rs. in 000’s)

- Right to Use Asset amounting — Rs. 25,658 {Previous Year — NIL)

- Lease Liabilities amounting Rs. 27,368 (Previous Year — NIL)

-~ Interest on Lease Liability amounting Rs. 2,198 (Previous Year — NIL)

- Amortization of Lease amounting Rs. 8,525 (Previous Year — NIL)

Previous Year — Exemption fo apply Ind AS 116 has been opted for:

- Short Term Leases - Rs. 7,931
~ Leases with low value totaling — Rs. 1,686




NOTE 33: DISCLOSURE ASSOCIATED WITH GRATUITY

¢) Current service cost

For FY 2020-21:
Particulars Ason 31%
March,
2021
{(Rs. In
000°s)
1 Acturial assumptions ( for.old 6 emplovees)
Mortality rate - LIC 2006-08 Ultimate N.A
Withdrawal rate 1% t03%
depending
on age
Discount rate 7.00% p.a
Salary escalation 4%,
< Results of valyation
a) PV of past service benefit 700
b) Current service cast 74
c) Total service gratuity 3,494
d} Accrued gratuity 1,098
e) LCSA 2,396
f} LC Premium 6
g2} GST @ 18% I
h) Interest & GST !
Recommended contribution rate
a) Fund value as on renewal date 727
b} Additional contribution for existing fund -
47




Particulars Ason 3%
March,
2021
{Rs. In
000°s)
1 Acturial assumptions( For New 69 Employees)
Mortality rate - LIC 2006-08 Ultimate N.A
Withdrawal rate 1% to 3%
depending
, on age
Discount rate 7.00% p.a
Salary escalation 4%
2 Results of valuation
a) PV of past service benefit 1,501
b) Current service cost 445
c) Total service gratuity 17,029
d) Accrued gratuity 2,354
e) LCSA 14,675
f) LC Premium 29
g) GST @ 18% 3
3 Recommended confribution rate '
a) Fund value as on renewal date 1,527
b) Additional contribution for existing fund )
c¢) Current service cost a1
4 Total amount recognized in balance sheet 600
5 . o i N 921
Total amount recognized in profit & loss( for all employees)

\ e

N/




For FY 2019-2¢

Sr. Amount
No. Particulars (Rs. In 000°s)
1) | Membership daia
Number of members 6.00
Average age 34.50
Average monthly salary (Rs.) ¥ 33,663.16
Average past service 7.67
2) | Valuation method - Project unit credit method NA
3) | Acturial assumptions
Mortality vate - LIC 2006-08 Ultimate NA
Withdrawal rate 1% to 3%
depending on
age
Discount rate 7.25% p.a
Salary escalation 4%
4) | Results of valuation
a) PV of past service benefit 573
b) Current service cos! 68
¢} Total service gratuity 3,355
d) Accrued gratuity 9.45
e) LCSA 2411
) LC Premium 6
g) GST @ 18% !
h) Interest & GST ¢ 0.01
5) | Recommended contribution rate
a) Fund value as on renewal date 348
b) Additional contribution for existing fund 24
¢) Current service cost 68
6) | Total amount recognized in balance sheet 99
7) | Total amount recognized in profit & loss g9




As per Ind AS 19, contribution to LIC for funded gratuity is classified as Dcfined
Contribution Plan, since there is no separate liability borne by INK India for gratuity
to be paid to any ¢ligible employee over and above gratuity to be paid by the L1C.

Due to lockdown, valuation report was obtained for 75 employees only (Previous Year
— 6). For the remaining 27 employees, provision has been made as per best estimates

of the management.

NOTE 34:

DISCLOSURE ON SEGMENT REPORTING AS PER IND AS 108

Since company operates in a single segment (business activity) of Fired Heaters and
related products, disclosure regarding operating segments is not given.

Disclosure regarding Geographical Areas is as follows:

(Rs. In 000%s)

INFORMATION ON REVENUE

PARTICULARS 2020-21 2019-20

REVENUE FROM COUNTRY OF

DOMICILE - INDIA

From Sale of Goods (a) 4,21,728 2,17,406

From Sale of Services (b) 77,455 4,78,295

REVENUE FROM FOREIGN COUNTRIES

From Sale of Goods in Following Countries

{(c) 1,16,354 62,875
| South Korea 42,856 62,975

Nigeria 73,497 -

Sale of Services in Following Countries (d) 5,90,283 2,57,916

South Korea | 4,47,767 2,57,916

Nigeria 142510 -

Total Revenue from Operations (a+b-+e+d) 12,05,820 10,16,593

INFORMATION ON NON-CURRENT

ASSETS

PARTICULARS 2020-21 2019-20

NON-CURRENT ASSETS IN COUNTRY OF

DOMICILE** ' 1,11,842 75,143

NON-CURRENT ASSETS IN FOREIGN

COUNTRIES** - -

** Excluding Deferred Tax Assets




NOTE 35: PRIOR PERIOD COMPARATIVE

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary 1o

correspond with current year’s classifications / disclosures.

Signatures to notes 1 to 35

As per Our Audit Report of even date

For CVK & Associates
Chariered Accountants
Firm Registration No:101745W
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DIN :0726272

Place; Thane
Date: 25.10.2021




